
Meeting Minutes 
March 25, 2025   

 
MINUTES OF MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA  

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
The Board of Commissioners of Mecklenburg County, North Carolina, met in Budget/Public Policy 
Session in Conference Center Room 267 on the 2nd floor of the Charlotte-Mecklenburg 
Government Center located at 600 East Fourth Street, Charlotte, North Carolina at 2:30 p.m. on 
Tuesday, March 25, 2025. 
 

ATTENDANCE 
 
Present:  Chair Mark Jerrell, Vice-Chair Leigh Altman  

and Commissioners George Dunlap, Arthur Griffin,  
Vilma D. Leake, Laura J. Meier,  
Susan Rodriguez-McDowell, Yvette Townsend-Ingram 
County Attorney Tyrone C. Wade 
Clerk to the Board Kristine M. Smith 
Deputy Clerk to the Board Arlissa Eason 

 
Absent:  County Manager Dena R. Diorio 
   Commissioner Elaine Powell 
 
 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER  

 
The meeting was called to order by Chair Mark Jerrell, followed by introductions and the Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag. 
 
Following the Call to Order, Clerk to the Board, Kristine M. Smith, administered the Oath of Office 
to Deputy Clerk to the Board, Arlissa Eason, and said oath to be filed in the permanent records of 
Mecklenburg County. 
 
25-0194 LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICE DISTRICT UPDATE 
 
 
The Board received as information, an update from Chief Johnny Jennings, Charlotte-
Mecklenburg Chief of Police, Major Bret Balamucki, and Major Ryan Butler regarding police 
services in the Law Enforcement Service District. 
 
The Board received as information, an update from Chief David Baucom, Town of Cornelius 
Chief of Police, regarding police services in the Law Enforcement Service District. 
 
The Board received as information, an update from Chief Barry Graham, Town of Huntersville 
Chief of Police, regarding police services in the Law Enforcement Service District. 
 
The Board received as information, an update from Chief Michael Hudgins, Town of Pineville 
Chief of Police, regarding police services in the Law Enforcement Service District. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
March 25, 2025   
 
 
 
 
Background:   Law enforcement for the unincorporated areas of Mecklenburg County (Extra-
Territorial Jurisdictions (ETJs)) is provided through three interlocal agreements with the City of 
Charlotte, the Town of Cornelius, the Town of Huntersville, and the Town of Pineville. The 
Interlocal Agreements stipulate that the Chief of Police from the respective service areas present 
updates regarding the police services that are being provided in each ETJ to the Board of County 
Commissioners. 
 
• The Charlotte-Mecklenburg Police Department (CMPD) provides law enforcement services to 
the ETJ areas of the City, the Towns of Davidson, Mint Hill, , and the portion of the Town of 
Huntersville’s ETJ where the McGuire Nuclear Plant is located. 
• The Cornelius Police Department (CPD) provides law enforcement services to the ETJ areas of 
Cornelius and Lake Norman. 
• The Huntersville Police Department (HPD) provides law enforcement services to the ETJ areas 
of Huntersville, not including the area where the McGuire Nuclear Plant is located. 
• The Pineville Police Department (PPD) provides law enforcement services to the ETJ areas of 
Pineville.  
 
 
Major Bret Balamucki, Major over Patrol Southeast, gave the presentation. 
 



Meeting Minutes 
March 25, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 
March 25, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 
March 25, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 
March 25, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 
March 25, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 
March 25, 2025   

 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
March 25, 2025   
 
Major Ryan Butler, Professional Accountability Bureau Commander gave the presentation. 
 



Meeting Minutes 
March 25, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 
March 25, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 
March 25, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 
March 25, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 
March 25, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 
March 25, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 
March 25, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 
March 25, 2025   

 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
March 25, 2025   
Chief David Baucom, Town of Cornelius Chief of Police gave the presentation. 
 



Meeting Minutes 
March 25, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 
March 25, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 
March 25, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 
March 25, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 
March 25, 2025   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
March 25, 2025   
Chief Barry Graham, Town of Huntersville Chief of Police, gave the presentation. 



Meeting Minutes 
March 25, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 
March 25, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 
March 25, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 
March 25, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 
March 25, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 
March 25, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 
March 25, 2025   

 
 
 
 
Chief Michael Hudgins, Town of Pineville Chief of Police, gave the presentation. 
 



Meeting Minutes 
March 25, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 
March 25, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 
March 25, 2025   

 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
March 25, 2025   
Comments 
 
Commissioner Dunlap commended them for their work in the community with schools and for 
improving their relationships with the community. He asked, with the 15,394 arrests made, 
how many were prosecuted. He asked about the 2,654 juvenile arrests and what percentage of 
the overall crime consisted of juveniles. He said while they developed their budget, he wanted 
to know what they could do to help them. 
 
Commissioner Meier thanked them. She said vehicular crime was high, part of it due to Hyundai 
and Kia, and asked if it would continue to go down. Major Balamucki said not everyone had the 
software upgrades, but they had seen the trend decline. He said it was hard to break the cycle.  
 
Commissioner Meier thanked them for highlighting their work on mental health. She asked 
about the bill for carrying a firearm without a concealed-carry permit and their opinion on that. 
Chief Graham said they would do whatever the law told them to do.  
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell thanked them. She said the JADE(Juvenile Accountability 
and Diversion Empowerment) team was an effective program. She highlighted the mention of a 
case manager in the program and said it needed to happen to further the program. Major 
Balamucki said they would love the opportunity and were excited to see what would come of 
that. Chief Hudgins said some of the towns were struggling due to budget restraints. He said 
they would love to have a co-responder like CMPD to help decriminalize mental health issues, 
substance abuse disorders, and homelessness. He said four of them were working together to 
get a grant to help fund it. Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell to Chief Hudgins - asked if he 
could explain the walkabouts, as he had mentioned they had one square mile of residential 
area in the ETJ of Pineville. She asked if they were going around knocking on doors. Chief 
Hudgins said they would walk around and ask the neighborhoods if they felt safe, and if not, 
why they didn’t, what could they do to help them feel safer. 
 
Commissioner Leake thanked them for sacrificing themselves and their families and for what 
they did in District 2. She asked how they could support the police department to make their 
neighborhoods safer. She said they would have to do better with policing their neighborhoods. 
Major Balamucki said it could be a location where they could work with Connect Charlotte to 
get cameras there. Commissioner Leake said she wanted her neighborhoods to be safe.  
 
Commissioner Griffin said the Planning Commission was responsible for planning in the ETJ. He 
asked if there was an increase in service and service calls to the ETJ over the last year or two.  
He asked about incidents, which were down by 2%, if there was a correlation between the 
increase in the population of Charlotte-Mecklenburg and a decrease in incidents in calls. He 
asked if juveniles were under court supervision, could they have a guardian ad litem or life 
navigator to address the officers' concerns of unsupervised juveniles.  Major Butler said they 
frequently saw requests from developers that wanted a property section annexed, but it didn’t 
affect their services. He said that where there was an increase in density, it led to congestion 
along with increases in car accidents and property crime. He said, just by nature, some of it 
would be juvenile-related. He said it was all just a matter of addressing growth density. 
Commissioner Griffin said if there was more they needed to do, they would need to know. 
Major Butler said some discussions would have to be held with the State.  
 
Commissioner Townsend-Ingram thanked them. She asked about the CIT (Crisis Intervention 
Team), and she said that mental health awareness was extremely important to her. She asked 
how it was funded, or whether they were seeking grants. She asked how the CIT responded 
when they didn’t know a co-responder was needed immediately. Major Butler said all of their 
officers went through the crime prevention training. He said they were looking to come up with 
a solution, and they would like to have more co-responders available. He said they weren’t 
trying to arrest their way out of a problem but were looking to provide the resources that were 
most beneficial to the residents of the County. Commissioner Townsend-Ingram asked if they 
worked with the City to talk to developers about putting in more lighting or cameras to deter 



Meeting Minutes 
March 25, 2025   
crime. Major Butler said neighborhoods worked closely with their patrol services and were 
always looking to be proactive. 
 
Vice Chair Altman thanked the men and women in law enforcement. She asked each of them to 
provide something they hadn’t already stated.  
 
The Police Chiefs and Majors provided additional commentary.  
 
Chair Jerrell said he appreciated their professionalism and wanted to continue to learn. He also 
recognized Commissioner Dunlap, who served as a police officer for 28 years.  
 
 
25-0178 FY2026 BUDGET ENGAGEMENT UPDATE & SURVEY RESULTS 
 
The Board received as information an update on the FY2026 Engagement Strategy and Budget 
Survey results. 
 
Adrian Cox, Budget Director, gave the presentation. 
 
Background:   As part of the annual budget process, the County Manager has instituted a robust 
strategy to engage with the public. Staff will update the Board on the engagement activities to 
date and share the results from the FY2026 Budget Survey.   
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
March 25, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 
March 25, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 
March 25, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 
March 25, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 
March 25, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 
March 25, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 
March 25, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 
March 25, 2025   

 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
March 25, 2025   
 
Comments 
 
Commissioner Townsend-Ingram thanked Mr. Cox. She asked for clarification on slides 19 and 
24. Mr. Cox reiterated the meaning of both slides. Commissioner Townsend-Ingram said the 
people they wanted to get an understanding of were the people who didn’t answer the survey. 
She said that the responses did not represent the people they were trying to serve. She asked 
how they got to them. She asked if there was an efficacy test. Mr. Cox said it was the reason 
they had two tests, one was an opt-in, and what was shown to them was represented by the 
County's race and other demographic factors. 
 
Commissioner Griffin said nothing in the 2026 service dealt with work. He said they needed to 
continue to provide safety nets. He said that with the dignity of moving forward and breaking 
the cycle of poverty, they had to figure out how to partner with some of their services. He said 
there had to be a yellow brick road for people to move forward on upward mobility. He said 
they had to do something different because they were getting the same results with what they 
were doing. 
 
Commissioner Leake asked how they could simplify the information so the public could 
understand who they were and what they were doing.  
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell said she appreciated them isolating the Commissioner 
districts and their value. She said it was valuable to hear from her district about their priorities. 
She said on slide 20 that 63.6% of respondents had no need for affordable housing. She pointed 
out how education was removed, and it showed how they were getting the information 
differently than in previous surveys. She said it was a complex way of knowing what their 
people wanted. 
 
Commissioner Meier asked him to explain why education was left off. Mr. Cox said last year, 
they made an effort to focus on the County's services. He said before that education was 
always a top priority, and still was. Commissioner Meier said affordable housing was something 
they dropped from their priorities and was clearly something the community worried about. 
 
Commissioner Dunlap said, about slide 24, the question was whether they were listening to 
what the community wanted or pushing their own agendas. He said he was disturbed that 
affordable housing was dropped off as well. He said there were times when they knew 
something the community didn’t know. He said the community wasn’t focusing on what it took 
for upward mobility. He said they would see more people move towards poverty if they didn't 
do those things. He said it was important to listen to the community, but when they sometimes 
knew better, it was important to educate them.  
 
Vice Chair Altman asked what it took to move people towards upward mobility, away from 
poverty, and towards independence. She said they needed to raise household incomes 
effectively.  
 
Chair Jerrell said he couldn’t let the issue of housing insecurity go and that he would always 
double down on the idea of housing. He said he respected the thoughts and opinions of the 
Board, and the data could help them inform policy discussions. He said they would need to 
respond consistently when they looked at other items that didn’t rank as high as housing. He 
said the data was valuable and agreed with Commissioner Dunlap’s thoughts on things they 
knew that the community didn’t know. He asked if they were underrepresented with their low-
income residents. Mr. Cox said it was only valid for the opt-in responses. Chair Jerrell said no 
matter where respondents fell on the spectrum, they were putting housing and mental health 
at the top as a concern. He said he was also happy to see services for seniors on there. He said 
he wanted the community to understand they were still committed to what the community 
needed. 
 



Meeting Minutes 
March 25, 2025   
 
 
25-0193  COMMISSIONER REPORTS 
 
Motion was made by Vice Chair Altman, seconded by Commissioner Meier, and unanimously 
carried, to extend the meeting five minutes.  
 
Commissioners shared information of their choosing within the guidelines as established by the 
Board, which included, but not limited to, past and/or upcoming events. 
 
 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
With no further business to come before the Board, Chair Jerrell declared the meeting 
adjourned at 5:04 p.m. 
 
 
 

   
            
______________________________ ____________________________ 
Arlissa Eason, Deputy Clerk to the Board                                                               Mark Jerrell, Chair 
 


	MINUTES OF MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
	ATTENDANCE


